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December 28, 2007 

Message from the Chair of the 
Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust 

Timothy P. Cahill, 
Chair of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust and 
Treasurer and Receiver General of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

To the Stakeholders of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust: 

I am pleased to transmit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CA FR) of the Massachusetts 
Water Pollution Abatement Trust for the ti scal year ending June 30, 2007. As ehair of the Trust. I al11 proud to 
continue my commitment to assisting the Co mmonwealth' s cities and towns in meeting their capital needs, 

In FY2007, the Trust provided $431.1 million in water infrastructure loans to 70 comlllunities and districts in 
the Commonwealth, including $4.1 million though the Title V Community Septic Management Program to 
assist homeowners with the costs of remediating failing septic systems. Nine communities borrowed from the 
Trust for the first time in FY2007, Over the past 12 years. the Trust has financed $3.4 billion of water 
infrastructure improvements in the Co mmonwealth. including $33.6 million to help homeowners t~lCing Title V 
repairs. 

The Trust is able to provide sueh financing by leveraging federal and state funds in rhe ca pital market. We arc 
commitkd to aggressively seeking the lowest cost of capital to minimi ze interest expense to our borrowers and 
to the Commonwealth. In FY2007, the Trust closed two refunding transactions that will reduce its (kbt service 
by $54 million - savings that will ultimately benefit the tax payers and ratepayers of Massachusetts . 

Nationally, the Clean Water State Revolving Fund program continues to fact: funding challe nges, In FY20()5 
and FY2006. federal funding of this program was rcduced by 18.7% per year: \ e estimate a reduction in 
funding of 36.4% for FY2008 : and President Bush has proposcd an additional reduction of 19,~% for FY2009 
I f adopted by Congress, Massachusetts' share 0 f th is val uab Ie fcdera I program wi \I ha ve been cu t from S4 5.0 
million in FY2004 to $18.6 million in FY2009. 

As federal support declincs. thc Trust will continue to find innovative ways to increas ti na ncial dTiciency. an I 
to improve our ability to support the Commonwealth's cnvironmental progra ms. Our goals lor 200~ will be to 
continue to reduce the Trust 's cost of capital. to seek additional state Hnd federal support. and to tlnd add itional 
program initiatives to improve the public health and the environment of Massachusetts. We look forward to 
continuing ollr efforts. 

Sincerely yours, 

~ 
Timothy P. Cahill 
Chair 
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December 28, 2007 

MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION 
ABATEMENT TRUST 
Timothy P. Cahill, Chair 

Leslie A. Kirwan, Laurie Burt, Trustees 

To the Board of Trustees of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust: 

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Re[1ort (CAFR) of the Massachusetts 
Water Pollution Abatement Trust (the "Trust") for the tiscal year ended June 30, 2007 . This year ' s 
CAFR is presented on a comparative basis with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, and is 
submitted under Article Vlf , Section 2 of the by-laws of the Trust. This report has been prepared 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals ("GAAP"), thereby satisfying 
applicable federal and state laws, program regulations, and other Trust agreements . 

The data presented is accurate in all material aspects and is reported in a manner that presents 
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the Trust. All disclosures necessary to 
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Trust 's activities have been included. The 
information contained within this report is the responsibility of management. Management 
maintains a program of internal control and has filed an internal control plan with the State 
Auditor. The internal control program of the Trust is designed to: safeguard the Trust's financial 
and other assets against loss from unauthorized usc or disposition, provide accurate and reliable 
financial and statistical records, and ensure that applicable laws, regulations and policies are 
adhered to. 

The Boston office of KPMG LLP has issued an issued an unqualified opinion on the 
Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust 's financial statements for 2007. The independent 
auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 

KPMG LLP also issued a "Single-Audit" report as required by the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133. In this report, KPMG represented that there is no reported 
noncompliance that is material to the financial statements, no reportable conditions or material 
weaknesses in internal control over major programs, and that the type of report issued on 
compliance for major programs is "unqualified ." 

The financial section includes management ' s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the financial 
results of the year, the basic general purpose tinancial statements and combining financial 
statements and schedules. The statistical section, which is unaudited , contains other schedules 
which may be useful in understanding the activities of the Trust. These statistical schedules 
include revenues and expenditures by character, loan activity by local governmental unit, as well 
as population served. These schedules are generally on a multi-year basis. 

Profile of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust 
The Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust IS a public instrumentality of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. It was established in 1989 to administer the Massachusetts 
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WatL:r Pollution Abatement Revolving Fund. pursuant to Titk VI of thc Federal Clean Waler Acl. 
Its enabling statute. Chapter 29(' of the Massachusetts Gencral Laws, was amcnded in 199X 10 

provide that the Trust would also administer the provisions of Title XIV of the Federal Saf'(: 
Drinking Water Act estahlishing the Drinking Water Slate Revolving Fund. 

The Trust administers loan programs that provide funding to cities, towns, other governmental 
units. and private entities to finance improvements to drinking water and wastewater infrastructure. 
To qualify for a loan. the project must be approved by the Departmcnt of Environmcntal Protection 
(DEP). 

As a public instrumentality, the Trust is rcported on the Commonwealth's 'ombined Annual 
Financial Report as a component unit. Pursuant to its enabling statute, the Trust also submits its 
independently audited financial statements to the Commonwealth's Senate and House of 
Representatives. as well as the Onice of the Comptroller, and other interested parties. Also. as an 
entity receiving federal funding, the Trust is required to undergo an allnual "Single Audit" to 
conform \-vith the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984. as amended. and the US Office of 
Management and Budget's Circular A-133. Audits of State and Local Governments. 

The Trust is governed by a three-member board of trustees chaired by State Treasurer and 
Receiver-General Timothy P. Cahill. The State Secretary of Administration and Finance. Leslie A. 
Kirwan. and Commissioner Environmental Protection Lauric Burt serve as members of the Board. 
The Trust operates under the direction of the Executive Director. and is administered by employees 
of the State Treasurer. A list of Trust management and an organization chart for the Trust follow 
this transmirtalletter. 

Information Useful in Assessing tlte Economic Condition of the ,\-'Iassachllsetts Water Pol/ution 
Abatement Trust 
To assess the Trust's financial condition, it is essential to understand the Trust's loan programs. 
The Trust administers three loan programs: the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. which 
primarily finances wastewater infrastructure projects, the Drinking Water State Revolving FUllJ. 
which primarily finances drinking water infrastructure projects. and the (' )mmunity Septic 
Management Program, which finances improvements to private septic systems. The Trust lends to 

cities, towns, other governmental units such as water and sewer authorities. and private water or 
wastewater system operators. To fund its operations. the Trust charges an administrative ke of 
0.15% of principal outstanding per year on Clean Water and Drinking Water loans . 

S ummary 0 fL oao P rograms 

Maximum 2007 
Loan Program Term (years) Interest Rate Administrative Fee 

Clean Water Standard 20 2% 0. 15% 

Clean Water Extended Term 30 2.30% 0.15 % 

Drinking Water 20 2% 0.15% 

Community Septic (Title V) 20 0% 0% 

Interim Clean or Drinking 0.1% of loan 
Water Loan 1 Y2 market ($500 min, $1,000 max) 
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To fund its loan programs, the Trust issues bonds, guaranteed by debt service reserve funds that 
are funded by federal and state grants. Currently, the standard loan offer is for a term of 20 years 
at a subsidized loan rate of 2%. Interest earnings on debt service reserve funds and appropriations 
from the Commonwealth provide the loan rate subsidy. As of June 30, 2007, the Trust has funded 
nearly $3.8 bLllion of projects for more than 1,000 projects to 274 borrowers across the 
Commonwealth, ranging in scope from secondary wastewater treatment and drinking water 
treatment plants to individual septic systems. 

Economic Factors Affecting the Trust 
The Trust's lending and bond issuance programs are structured in sllch a way as to ensure adequate 
cash flows to fllnd its loans and to repay its bonds for the term of the bonds. To provide security to 
its bonds, the Trust pledges federal and state capitalization grant funds . As a result of the diversity 
of its loan portfol io, the size of its debt service reserve funds, and its support from the state, the 
Trust's bonds are rated AAAJ Aaa/ AAA by Fitch, Moody's Investors Service, and Standard and 
Poor's, respectively. 

As a result of the Trust's highly-structured approach to lending and bonding, the finances of the 
Trust are generally unaffected by traditional economic indicators. Demand for Trust loans is 
dependent on the Commonwealth's need for drinking water and wastewater infrastmcture relative 
to the Trust's capacity. Demand for Trust loans remains strong. [n 2007, the DEP received 
applications for $1,511,953,960 in Clean Water loans and approved $397,834,000. For the 
Drinking Water program, DEP received applications for $715,845,973 and approved 
$125,729,000. Demand for the Trust's lending programs is expected to remain strong. 

Long Term Financial Planning 
Relative to its long-term financial position, the most important issue the Trust faces is the status of 
future federal support for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Trust's financial capacity 
is adequate to fund those projects approved by DEP. However. future growth in capacity of the 
Trust is dependent on federal appropriations to the State Revolving Fund programs, shown on the 
Trust's Financial Statements, footnote (4), as "capitalization grants." While support for the 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund has been steady, and is expected to remain so, support for 
the Clean Water State Revolving Fund has declined over the past several years, as shown below: 

5 



millions) Federal Appropriations to Clean Water State Revolving Fund (in $1 

Federal Fiscal Fcdt'ral Massachusetts Annual 'x, 
Yt'ar Appropriation Grant* Growth 

2001 1.347 .0 45.2 -0.9% 

2002 1.350.0 45 .3 0.2% 

2003 1.341.2 45.0 -0.7% 

2004 1,342.0 45.0 O.I(Yu 

2005 1,091.2 36.6 -IR.7% 

2006 886.8 29.7 -IR.7% 

2007 1,083.8 36.3 22.2% 

200Se 689.0 23.1 -36.4'Yr, 

2009p 555.0 I R.6 -19.4(% 

e==estllllated 
p = proposed by President 
*May not match tigures in tinancial statements. footnote (4) due to timing diHcrcnccs between 
appropriation and grant award. 

It is the policy of the Trust to not allow the DEP to approve funding of projects beyond the Trust's 
capacity. If federal funding continues to decline, the Trust's ability to increase its Clean Water 
State Revolving Fund lending activities will be limited without additional state support or 
increased contribution from the borrowers. While this does not affect the financial health of the 
Trust, it will affect the programs administered by the T111St. 

In addition, because DEP program administration is f'unded through a 4% administrative charge on 
federal grants, a reduction in federal grants results in decreased administrative funding for DEP. 
For the T111St'S programs to continue, then. funding must be provided to DEP eithL'r by the 
Commonwealth, or from the Trust's administrative fees. At this time. management estimates that 
administrative fees are sufficient to provide for lost federal administrative revenue. 

Major Initiatives 
The Trust financed 90 loans totaling $439 million dollars during 2007. Among these loans were 
nine loans to new borrowers, bringing the total number of borrowers served by the Trust to 274. 
We estimate that 97% of the population of the Commonwealth lives in a city or town that has 
borrowed funds through the Trust. 

Many of the Trust's borrowers are not part of traditional sewer systems. They benclit from Trust 
financing available under the Commonwealth's Title 5 Septic System Repair and Replacement 
program. With the issuance of Pool 12, another $4.1 million was earmarked for the Titk 5 
program, bringing the total borrowed to date for Title 5 projects to $40.6 million. 

Following is a three-year ranking of program indicator data compiled by EPA In the State 
Revolving Fund National Information Management System. These data reveal that while 
Massachusetts is a relatively small state, our State Revolving Fund programs have consistently 
ranked among the top programs in the nation in several key performance indicators. 
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EPA National Information Management System State Comparison (2005-2007) 

FY 05 rank FY 06 rank 

Assistance Provided (Loan made as a percent of capitalization grants) 

1 Rhode Island 
2 Massachusetts 
3 Arizona 
4 Minnesota 
5 Kansas 

National average: 

428 
377 
366 
366 
343 
226 

Gross Dollars Loaned (Millions of dollars) 

1 New York 
2 Texas 
3 Ohio 
4 Massachusetts 
5 California 

National average: 

7,943 
3,660 
3,258 
3,132 
3,021 
1,033 

Loans Made (Number of pro jects funded) 

1 Ohio 
2 Minnesota 
3 Delaware 
4 New York 
5 Massachusetts 

National average: 

1,828 
1,278 

975 
921 
908 
328 

Disbursements (Millions of dollars) 

1 New York 
2 Texas 
3 California 
4 Massachusetts 
5 Ohio 

National aver~e: 

CSO funding (Millions of dollars) 

1 Michigan 
2 New York 
3 Illinois 
4 Massachusetts 
5 Rhode Island 

National average: 

7,909 
3,600 
2,760 
2,595 
2,166 

885 

1,077 
812 
678 
469 
292 

91 

1 Rhode Island 
2 Massachusetts 
3 Arizona 
4 Minnesota 
5 Kansas 

National aver~e: 

1 New York 
2 Texas 
3 Ohio 
4 California 
5 Massachusetts 

National average: 

1 Ohio 
2 Minnesota 
3 Delaware 
4 Iowa 
5 Massachusetts 
5 New York 

National aver~e : 

New York 
2 Texas 
3 California 
4 Massachusetts 
5 Ohio 

National average: 

1 Michigan 
2 New York 
3 Illinois 
4 Massachusetts 
5 Rhode Island 

National average: 
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FY06 

457 
392 
385 
380 
348 
239 

8,647 
3,713 
3,539 
3,436 
3,400 
1,131 

2,051 
1,385 
1,062 

976 
952 
952 
364 

8,685 
3,654 
2,882 
2,865 
2,582 

971 

1,186 
887 
705 
597 
347 
103 

FY 07 rank 

1 Arizona 
2 Rhode Island 
3 Massachusetts 
4 Minnesota 
5 Kansas 

National average: 

1 New York 
2 Texas 
3 California 
4 Ohio 
5 Massachusetts 

National average: 

1 Ohio 
2 Iowa 
3 Minnesota 
4 Delaware 
5 Massachusetts 

National average: 

1 New York 
2 Texas 
3 California 
4 Massachusetts 
5 Ohio 

National average: 

1 Michigan 
2 New York 
3 Massachusetts 
4 Illinois 
5 Rhode Island 

National average: 

466 
462 
421 
385 
364 
252 

9,270 
3,958 
3,870 
3,819 
3,777 
1,234 

2,313 
1,515 
1,500 
1,128 
1,010 

406 

9,361 
3,898 
3,259 
3,117 
2,938 
1,071 

1,215 
997 
733 
712 
358 
103 



Fi"a"dall"itiat;,les 
The Trust is commirted to managing its finances in sueh a way as to minimi ze the cost to the 
COtlHllol1\vealth. During 2007, we undertook two transactions that will ultimately result in $54.4 
million in savings to the taxpayer. 

• • 

The Trust issued $416.2 million in refunding bonds, advance refunding $426.H million of ~ 
previously issued, higher-interest debt. This refunding will reduce the cost of the Tll.lst's debt 
service by $41.4, or 5.6% on a present value basis, over the next 25 years. 

The Trust also entered into a forward interest rate swap agreement for $194.8 million of debt thai, 
by law cannot be refunded until 2009. This agreement "locks-in" today 's interest rates until 2009, 
\V'hen debt service will be reduced by $13.0 million or 7.00/;) , on a present value basis. 

Awards and Acknowledgments 
The Govcmment Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded the Ccrtiticatc of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Trust for its comprehensive annual financial report 
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The award is the Trust' s twelfth consecutive 
citation . In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievemcnt, the Trust had to publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally acceded accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe th3t out current 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we arc 
submitting it to the GFOA to c1etennine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust is a collaborative effol1 or the Massac husetts 

, 
• • 
• 

State Treasury, the Department of Environmental Protec tion, the Executive Officc tor • 
Administration and Finance, and the U. S. Environmental Protec tion Agency. Without the hard 
work, strong support, and goodwill of people in each of these agencies, the work of the Trust 
would not get done. To them, we extend oLlr deepest gratitude. 

The preparation of this report would not have been poss ible without the hard work of the entire 
staff' of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust. We must also acknowledge the 
Chairman and the Board of Trustees for the trust they have put in us, and the Legislature and 
people of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for their continued support. 

Respectfully submitted, 

......, ,,,,f...L--
~ AA .. ~ 6bt't£A._~ 

\ - ~ . ~v 

Francis G. Hart 

Controller 
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Execu ti ve Director 
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Massachusetts Water Pol/ution Abatement Trust Chairman, State Treasurer Timothy P. 
Cahill, with the Trust staff. 
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Th~ maps below show that the majority of cities and towns 111 the Commufl\vc;11th arc s~rVGd by 
th~ Trust's lending programs. 

Mas.achusatls Watar Pollullon Abatament Trust • iJ.~'. • 
Clean Water Communltlas (2006) )Ii 

Stat a Revolving Loan Fund Program 

l ...... 

~11iI~ Fll ''{1C1\1" :!Ooo 
COOVlllJIl.i1. NUt Funvoo rI 1008 -....... 

Massachus.tts Water Pollution Abatement Trust 
Drinking Water Communities (2006) 
State Revolving Loan Fund Program 

Massachusetts Wa18t' Pollution Abatement Trult 
Title 5 CommunltIM (2OOe, 

State Revolving Loan Fund Program 

--

12 



Certificate of 
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KPMG LLP 
99 High SlIeet 
BostOn. MA 02 110-2371 

Tel pllone 6 17 9 8 1000 
x 6 179 80800 

Int rllet www. LJs.kplI. ( .COni 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board 0 f Trustees 
Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abakment 
Trust (the Trust), a component unit of the COllll1lonwealth of ivlassachusctls. as or and for the years ended 
June 30, 2007 and 2006. as listed in the table of contents. These tinancial statements are the responsibility 
of the Tntst's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these tinancial statements based 
on our audits . 

We conducted our audits in accord'mee with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States (}r 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government A/lditing SfOndurd~, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ti nancial statements arc free of material 
miss tatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis ror 
designing audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose or expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tmst's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingl y. we 
express no such opinion. An audit includes examining. on a test bas is. evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the tinancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles useJ 
and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

[n our opinion, the financial statements refcn'ed to above present fairly. in all matLrial respects, the 
financial position of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abate1l11:nt Trust as of June 30. 2007 and 2006. :1 nJ 
the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then enJed in conformi ty wilh 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 18 through ~3 is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but is supplementary infOlmation required by U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles . We have applied certain limited procedures. which consisted principally or inquiri es of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the requireJ supplementa ry 
information . However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 
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• 
In accordance with Government Auditing S/undardl', we have also issued our report, dated December I X, 
2007, on our consideration of the Trust's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreement. and other matters, 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control Over financial rcporting 
and comrliance and the results of that testing, and not to rrovide an opinion on the intcrnal control ovcr 
financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit rerformed in accordancc 
with Government Auditing Standardl' and should be considcred ill assessing thc results of Ollr audits, 

Decembcr 28,2007 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

lA (lllnponcnl Unit ur the Conlll1onwcalth or Massachusetts) 

Rcquired Supplemcntary Information 

Management 's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

:Vlanagement's Discussion and Analysis 

The rol lowing is management's di sc ussion and analys is of the financial position and activities or the 
Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement TlUst (the Trust), a component unit of the Commonwealth or 
Massachusetts (the Commonwealth) , as of and for the ti sca l years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. This discussion 
is a narrative overview and analysis of our financial ac tivities and should bc read in conjunction with the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Financial Highlights - Fiscal 2007 

• Assets exceed liabilities by $1.63 billion, a 6.32% increase over ti sca l 2006. at the close (If the fiscal year. 
Included in this number is long-tenn loans rece ivable, which increased rrom $2.6 billinn ill tiscal 2006 to 
52.9 billion and long-term debt , which increased from $2.7 billion to $2.9 billion in tiseal 2007 , 

• Net assets increased by $96.8 million from las t year, an incrcasc of 6.32%. 

• Operating income increased by $14.6 million from fiscal 2006, resulting in operating mCOllle or 
$30.1 million in FY07, 

• The statement of cash flows indicates a decrease in cash for the year of S27, 74 mill ion. 

• [n FY07. the Trust continued to receive Capitalization Grants from the U,S, Environmcntal Protection 
Agency for both the Clean Water and Safe Drinking Water programs, The Trust received 529.7 ll1illilln 
from the Clean Water Program and received $22 ,0 million in the State Drinking Water Program. The 
Commonwealth provided a match of $7, I million for these federally funded programs. The continued 
capitalization of the TlUsL combined with the Trust's access to the bond mark d , has allowed the Trust to 
provide funding to all quali fied borrowers. 

• The Trust issued $416,2 million in Series 2006A Refunding Bonds in December 2006 - that achance 
refunded $426.8 million of previously issued bonds , This new issue will ultimatel y reduce the Cllst of the 
TlUst's debt service by $41.4 million , or 5.6% on a present value basis. ovcr the next 25 years , 

• The Trust also issued $431.1 million in Series t 2 in December 200n. This new issue \ViII be llsed to 
finance water pollution abatement and drinking water projects in 70 communities and special di stricts , 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Required Supplementary Information 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

• The Trust continues to maintain its ratings from all three major rating agcncies on our honds , allowing the 
Trust to continue to provide funds to communities at the lowest cost possible. The Tl1.Ist's current ratings 
are: 

Ratings on trust debt 

Pooled Loan Program 
Massachusetts Water Resources 

Authority (MWRA) Loan 
Program 

New Bedford Loan Program 

South Essex Sewerage District 
Loan Program 

Financial Highlights - Fiscal 2006 

Fitch rBCA 

AAA 

AA+-AAA 
AA- AAA 

AAA 

Moody's Investor's 
Service, Inc. 

Aaa 

Aaa 
Aaa (insured) Aa3 

(underlying) 

Aaa 

Standard & Poor's 

AAA 

• Assets exceed liabilities by $1.5 billion, a 6.8% increase over fiscal 2005, at the close of the fIscal year. 
Included in this number is loans receivable, which increased from $2.5 billion in fiscal 2005 to $2.7 billion 
in fiscal 2006. 

• Net assets increased by $97.5 million from last year, an increase of 6.8%. 

• Operating income increased by $14.6 million from fiscal 2005, resulting In operating income of 
$15.5 million in fiscal 2006. 

• The statement of cash nows indicates an increase in cash for the year of $13 .0 million. 

• In FY06, the Trust continued to receive its Capitalization Grants from the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency in both the Clean Water and Safe Drinking Water programs. Thc Trust received $36.6 million 
from the Clean Water Program and received $29.6 million in the State Drinking Water Program. The 
Commonwealth provided a match of $7.3 million for these federally funded programs. This has allowed 
the Trust to continue to expand the base of capital in the Revolving Fund and support the administrative 
costs without having to rely heavily on the Commonwealth to keep the program viable . 

• The Trust continues to maintain its ratings from all three major rating agencies on our bonds, thus allowing 
the Trust to continue to provide funds to communities at the lowest cost possible. The Trust's current 
ratings are: 

Ratings on trust debt 

Pooled Loan Program 
MWRA Loan Program 
New Bedford Loan Program 

South Essex Sewerage District 
Loan Program 

Fitch ISCA 

AAA 
AA+-AAA 
AA-AAA 

AAA 
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Moody's Investor's 
Service, Inc. 

Aaa 
Aaa 

Aaa (insured) Aa3 
(underlying) 

Aaa 

Standard & Poor's 

AAA 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(i\ 'omponent U nit of the C0ll11l10nwea Ith of Massachusetts) 

Overview of Financial Statements 

Rcquircd Supplemcntary Information 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

./une 30,2007 and 2006 

The financial section of this report consists of the following parts: management's discllssion and analysis 
(this section), the basic financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. 

The Trust's financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as 
applied to government enterprise funds . Under this method of accounting, an economic resources measurement 
focus and an accrual basis of accounting is used. Revenue is recorclcd when earned. and expenses arc recorded 

• • 

when incurred. The bnsic financial statements include statements of net assets. statements of revenues. expenses. ... 
and changes in net assets. and statements of cash nows. This report also includes notes accompanying the . ...... 
statements to fully explain the activities reported in them. ~ 

The statements of net assets present infonnation on the assets and liabilities of the Trust. The difference between 
the two is net assets. Over time, increases and decreases 111 net assets may be an indicator of the strength or 
deterioration of the financial health of the Trust. 

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets report the orerating revenues and expenses and 
the nonoperating revenues and expenses of the Trust for the fiscal year. The difference - increase or decn..:ase in 
net assets - then determines the net change in assets for the fiscal year. This change in net assets added to last 
year's net asset,' will reconcile to the total net assets for this tiscal year. 

The statements of cash flows report activity of cash and cash equivalents during the fiscal year resulting from 
operating activities, capital and related financing activities. noncapital financing acti itics, and investing 
activities. The net result of these activities is reconciled to the cash and cash equivalent balances reported at the 
end of the tiscal year. This statement is prepared lIsing the direct method of presentation which allows the rcaLler 
to easily discern the amount of cash received from grantors, borrowers, and financial institutions and ho\\ much 
cash \Vas di bursed to borrowers , suppliers, and bondholders. 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Financial Analysis of the Trust 

Net Assets 

Required SupplernentalY fnformatioll 

Management' s Di sc ussioll and Analysis 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

The Trust's net assets at June 30, 2007 were approximately $l.6 billion, a 6.3% increase ova the prior year 
(see Table A-I). Total assets increased 10.3% to $5.0 billion, and total liabilities increased 12.41~'o to $3.4 hillioll. 

Current assets 
Loans receivable, long term 
Other 

Total assets 

Current liabi I itics 
Long-term debt 
Other 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Long-Term Debt 

Table A-I 

M assachuselts Water Pollution Abatement Trust's Net Assets 

( In thousand s) 

s 

2007 

56 1,1 92 
2,869,044 
t ,552,486 

S ==4.:::9=82=,7=2=2= 

s 215, 118 
2.953.762 

184.094 

$ 3.352,974 

s 

==== 

1,453, 152 
176,596 

S 1.629.748 
==== 

2006 

590,011 
2,567.513 
1,358,13 I 

4,515,655 

206,975 
2,682. I JJ 

93,664 

2.9H2,752 

1.390.493 
142.410 

1,53 2,903 

2005 

605,48H 
2,J8fU 70 
1.259,3 I I 

4,253 , 169 

196.426 
2,502,266 

I 19. I 05 

Um.797 

1,322,4 17 
J 12.955 

1,435,372 

Percentage change 
2007 - 2006 2006 - 2005 

(5)% (.1)% 

12 X 
14 X 

10% 6%, 

4% 50 ' / 0 

10 7 
97 (21 ) 

I,Of _ ' u 6% 

5% 5(~,o 

24 26 

6% 7% 

The Trust incurs debt in order to fund communities' construction projects under the Clean Water and Drinking 
Water programs. This debt is offset by the loans receivable carried on the Trust's statements of net assets, and the 
debt service requirements of this debt are secured by loan repayments by the borrowers, investment earnings on a 
debt service reserve fund established for each bond issuance, and Commonwealth "contract assistance" subsidies . 
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j\'IASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Required Supplementary Information 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June:: 30,2007 and 200n 

[n FY07. the Trust's total liabilities increased by $370 million to $3.4 billion. This increast! is the net change in 
debt due to the issuance of the Pooled Loan Program, Series 12 issue of $431 million and thc retiremcnt or 
$ 122 million of oLltstanding principal through regular payme::nts to bondholders. [n lisca l 2007. the Trust al.'n 
issued $416 million in additional bonds to advance refund $426.8 million of previously issued debt to take 
advantage of the current low interest rate environment. This refunding will net the Trust $41.4 million 
($24.0 million net present value) in total cash flow savings over the next 25 years. 

T:lble A-2 

Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust's Changcs in Net Assets 

(In thousands) 

JUIIC 30 Percentage change 
2007 2006 2005 2007-2006 20UO-2005 

Ope rating r.:venucs: 
Intcrest income S 179 . .345 163,391 170.646 10% (4)'}o 

Other' 5.301 3.674 3.603 44 , 
-

Total operating rewnues I X4.646 I h7.0()) 174.240 II ( -I) 

Oper:lling cxpc:nses: 
Interest expense 129.:i2X 134.079 1.16.4.' 7 (3) ( -) 

Grant Jishurscments 20)(16 ( 1(0) 

Program suppon 16.602 I ~.306 1.1.215 ~ 16 
Other 8 ,397 2.IRO V!XX 1~ .- (2 -) 

Total operating .:xpens.:s 154 .527 151.565 173.306 2 ll.l ) 

Operating income 30.119 15.500 X53 94 I. 17 

i\()Jloperating revenues: 
Operating grants 7.853 8.'07 10.')Xl I~) _3) 
Capiralization grants 58.873 73..524 X4.26l) (20) (13 ) 

Total nonoperating revenues 66.726 82,031 95.252 (10 ) ( 14 \ 

Change in nct assets 96,845 97.53 I 96.105 (I) 

Net assets, beginning of year 1,532 .903 1.435.3 72 1.339.267 7 7 

Net asscts. end of year S 1.629.748 1.532.903 1.435.372 6°0 n" 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Required Supplementary lnfonnation 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

Operating revenues increased by 11 % from 2006 to 2007 as a result of increased interest earnings from loans and 
increased other income. Interest earnings increased as the Trust's loan portfolio shifted toward 103ns charging 
2%, as required by the Legislature beginning with loans approved in 2002. Also, in 2007 short-term interest rates 
increased over 2006, increasing earnings on the Trust's cash. Other income increased as a result of a change in 
policy by the Trust to require borrowers to pay loan origination fees at the time of the tirst debt service payment 
rather than financing the cost over the life of the loan . Nonoperating revenues decreased 19% from 2006 to 2007 
as a result of a reduced federal appropriation for capitalization grants in 2007. 

Operating expenses increased by 2% as a result of increased arbitrage rebate payments, and subsidy payments to 
the Department of Environmental Protection. 

Loans Receivable 

Subsidized financing has been an important incentive for many communities to undertake water and sewer 
infrastructure improvement projects. Since the enactment of Chapter 95 of the Acts of 1995, the Trust has been 
the Commonwealth's primary program to finance such improvements. 

The Trust provides funding to communities through low-interest loan programs. The rate for Trust loans is sct by 
statute at 2%, although projects approved prior to 2002 may qualify for a lower rate. The Trust's loan programs 
are very attractive to borrowers, and the Trust 's loan portfolio continues to grow. Loans receivable increased 
from $2.6 billion to $2.9 billion, an increase of 11.7%, in fiscal 2007. 

Future Economic Factors 

In March 2007, the Commonwealth enacted Chapter 27 of the Acts of 2007, which provides $9.7 million in 
matching capitalization funds for the Federal Clean Water and Safe Drinking Watcr programs for the fiscal years 
of 2007 and 2008. The Trust expects the Governor to file a bill with the Legislature that will provide sufficient 
funding for fiscal years 2009-2014 in January 2008. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is intended to provide an overview of the financial picture of the Massachusetts Water 
Pollution Abatement Trust for those with an interest in the agency. Any further questions regarding any of thc 
infonnation contained with in this report may be directed to the Executive Director or the Treasurer at 
One Ashburton Place, 12th Floor, Boston, MA 02108. 
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MASSACI-llJSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABA'rEMENT TRlIST 

(A CllmpolIL'nt Unit or tht: COl11lllollwt:alth nl' i'v1assadlllsdts) 

Statt:lllt:nts or Nt:t !\ssds 

.Iunt: 30. 2007 and 200(, 

Assets: 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents (not~ 3) 
ShOri-tt:nn investments (note 3) 
Grants rcceivable: 

U.S. Environmcntal Prott:ction Agency 
COlllmonwealth of Massachusetts 

Loans recei vable, eUITent (note 5) 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Project fund invt:stmcnts (note 3) 
Loans receivable. long-tenn (note 5) 
Long-term investments (note 3) 
Other assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabil ities: 
Current Iiabilitit:s: 

Accnlcd exp~nscs 
Accrued intercst payable 
Current portion: 

Loan commitments and project fund s payable 
Long-term debt (note 6) 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Loan commitments and project funds payable 
Accrued interest on capital appreciation bonds 
Long-term debt. net (note 6) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Restricted (note 7) 
Restricted - contract assistance (note 7) 
Unrestricted (note 7) 

Commitments and contingencies (note 8) 

Total net assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

(III thousands) 
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2007 

$ 254.059 
20.941 

14.K9R 
7.304 

174 .62 1 
R9.169 

561.192 

It{ UK2 
2)~69 .044 
1,364.196 

0,50X 

4.42 1. -30 

4.982,722 

164 
54,620 

20.941 
139.393 

2 15 . 1 It{ 

I R1.782 
2.31 2 

2.953.762 

3,137.X56 

3.352.974 

1.449.368 
3.7K4 

176.51.)6 

$ 1.()19.748 

2006 

2X un 
25.9.\7 

I S,93 1 
10,060 

17I.JX2 
R4 .904 

5lJ().O I I 

91,672 
2.567.51 3 
I. r 9.61] 

(,.X26 

3.92: ,644 

4.515.655 

5R.993 

25 ,9 
1_2.045 

~06,975 

l) 1.072 

1. 3 6. 709 
3.784 

142.410 

1.532.903 



MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Asse ts 

Years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 

Operating revenues: 
Loan servicing fees 
Loan origination fees 
[ntcrest income 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts: 

(In thousands) 

Department of Environmental Protection - programmatic 
support costs 

General and administrative 
Arbitrage rebate payments 
Interest expense 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating revenue: 
Operating assistance: 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Contract assistance: 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts (note 7) 
Capitalization grant revenue: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency capitalization 
grants (note 4) 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts matching grants 

Total nonoperating revenue 

I ncrease in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

2007 

],914 
1,387 

179,345 

184,646 

16,602 
4.511 
3,~86 

129,528 

154,527 

30, 119 

7,853 

51,767 
7,106 

66,726 

96,845 

1,532,903 

1,629,748 

2006 

3,040 
28 

I (i3,391 

1(i7,065 

15,306 
1,145 
1,035 

134,079 

151,565 

15 ,500 

7,853 

654 

66,207 
7,317 

82,031 

97,531 

1,435,372 

1,532,903 



MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLl UTION A8ATEMENT TRUST 

(/\ Clll11pOnent Unit 01' thL: COllll1lonwealth 01' Massachusdts) 

Cash tlOIl'S from opc:rating activities: 
Other cash recei ved from borrowers 
Cash paid to vendors 

StatL:illeI1l~ 01' Cash Flows 

Ye 'lrs ended June 30. 20()7 and 2000 

(In thousands) 

Net cash used in operating ac tivitiL:s 

Cash !lows I'rom capital and rcl atL:d linancing aetivitiL:s: 
Proceeds frolll U.S. Environmental Protection AgL:nc y capitalization grants 
Proceeds from COllllllonwcalth matching capital i,w tion grant: 

NL:t cash provided by capital and related lin:lIleing aLli\itiL:s 

Cash !lows from noncapital linancing ac ti vities: 
Bonds proceeds 
Repaymcnt of bonds 
Interest pa id 
Contrac t assistance 
Operating ass istance from the Commonwealth or Massachusetts 
Other 

Net cash pro \i ided by noncapital linancing activities 

Cash !lows Irol11 investing activities: 
Loans disbursed to rccipicnts 
Cash recei vcd from borrowers 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds frol11 maturities of investments 
Intcrest received 

Net cash used in invcsting activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equi va lents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 

RL:concil iation of operating income to net cash used in operating ,lctivities: 
Operating income S 
Adjustments to reconcile operati·ng income to net cash used in 

operating acti vi ties : 
Reclass ification of: 

Interest income 
Interest expense 
Changcs in operating assets and liabilities: 

Other assets and liabilities. net 

Net cash used in operating ac tivities 

Nonc:lsh activity: 
During 2007. the Trust issued $416.2 mill ion of bonds to advance re fund 

$426.8 million of outstanding bonds through an "in-substance" dekasance 
transaction. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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S 

2007 

5']01 
(24.M:2) 

(II).JSI) 

52J';oO 
I) .XCl3 

fl2.()().\ 

4X7.143 
( 147,%X) 
( I3J.579) 

7.g5] 

213A49 

(441.054 ) 
17i.JS2 

(369.322) 
179.M5 
174.RXO 

(2 4.4(9) 

(27.73 8) 

2 R 1.797 

25Hl59 
==~~= 

30.119 

( 179,345) 
129.S2t\ 

317 

(11),381) 

2006 

"1.h 7~ 
( 17.24()) 

(11.571) 

fl4.()lJ4 
1 (lA0 7 

75. I () I 

J04.()(,l) 
( III.!)~~) 
( I 27NN) 

(154 
7.X5] 

320 

7.1.:'42 

(3:->0 .250) 
141 !r4 

(J () 3,~ X4 ) 
J ,4,454 
I 55.A-0 

( ll2.0Ni) 

12.9C)(i 

2()X.80 I 

2X 1.79 

15 . .500 

( I (i3.39 I ) 
134 .0 79 

241 

( \.' .5 7 1 ) 



(1) Organization 

MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTIOi\ ABATEME~T TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

The Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (the Trust), a component unit of the Commol1\vealth 
of Massachusetts (the Commonwealth), was crcated by Chapter 275 or the Acts of 1989 of the 
Commonwealth (the Act) to implement the State Revolving rund (the SRF) Program for the 
Commonwealth, contemplated by Title VI of the Federal Clean Waler Act (the CWA). The Trust is 
governed by a board of trustees consisting of the State Treasurer. the Secretary of the Executive Offiee lor 
Administration and Finance, and the Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Protcction 
(the DEP). 

The financial and management activities of the Trust are administered by employees of the State 
Treasurer's office. The project oversight and direction is provided by the DEP. Certain financial oversight 
is provided by the Executive Office for Administration and Finance. The Trust commenced operations in 
June 1990. The long-term goals of the Trust include creating and implementing an SRF program that 
provides a source of financing for water pollution abatement projects (the projects). Construction of 
projects on the National Municipal Policy List, the cleanup of Boston Harbor, and the correction of 
combined sewer overflows are prime focuses for the Federal SRF Program. 

The Trust is authorized by the Act to borrow money through the issuance of revenue bonds and to apply 
the proceeds thereon, together with federal and state capitalization grants and other funds made available to 
the Trust, to make loans to local governmental units to finance thc costs of eligible water pollution 
abatement projects (the Leveraged Loan Program). 

During fiscal 1993, the Legislature enacted an amendment to the Act. This law, Chapter 203 of the Acts of 
1992 (Chapter 203), states that all eligible loans made by the Trust can havc subsidies that accomplish a 
grant equivalency of25%. This amendment further directs that certain projects on the DEP's Intended Use 
Plan prior to 1992 should receive higher subsidy levels. 

Chapter 203 also reduces the total authorization for Commonwealth general obligation bonds for the Trust 
from $1.3 billion to $122 million. State matching funds for the federal SRF and reserve funds for the 
Commonwealth SRF continue to be Funded through a general obligation bond source. However, all subsidy 
contributions now come from a Commonwealth Contract Assistance Agreement that is provided through 
the Commonwealth's annual operating budget and cannot exceed $26 million in anyone fiscal ycar. This 
has the net effect of reducing authorized Commonwealth debt while still ensuring funding for a perpetual 
state revolving fund. 

During fiscal 1994, the Trust established an Interim Loan Program and a Small Direct Loan Program for 
local government units' borrowing needs . The Interim Loan Program provides temporary short-term 
financing to local government units that are to be subsequently refinanced through permanent leveraged 
loans. The Small Direct Loan Program finances single small projects where leveraged loans would not be 
financially feasible for the local government units. 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit or the COllll11onwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Finam:ial Statements 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

During fiscal 1996, the Comrnol1vvealth approved an amendment to Chapter 29C of the General Laws to 
provide a subsidy or other assistance equivalent to a grant of 50(~'o of the eligible costs of the project 
financed by the loan. The amendment is applicable f~)r all loans iss Lied after October I, I S)l)5. This 
amendment provides additional subsidy levels of up to $R million annually. 

Amendments to the Federal Sate Drinking Water Act adopted in 1996 provide for the establishment of 
additional state revolving fund programs to provide financial assistance to various c01J1munity water 
systems (including for-profit companies) and not-for-profit noncommunity water systems tor expenditures 
that will facilitate compliance with national drinking water regulations or otherwise ad ance the health 
protection objt:etives of the Safe Drinking Water Act. The Safe Drinking Water Act regulatinns and other 
guidance issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency contemplate that state rcvolving fund 
programs established in accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Act will operate under terms and 
conditions substantially similar to programs developed under the Federal CWA. In addition. the 
amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act provide Authority for the consolidation of a Safe Drinking 
Water Act revolving fund with a CWA revolving fund for purposes of investment and the issuance of. and 
security for. bonds. 

During fiscal 1998, the Trust created a new fund to account for the receipts and disbursements in 
conjunction with the Commonwealth's Title V regulations. The Community Septic . anagement Program 
Fund is the recipient of amounts bonded for in the Third Pooled Loan Program Financing on April 29. 
1997 and the Fourth Pooled Loan Program Financing on December 9, 199R. It also is used tor pass-through 
assistance payments from the Commonwealth to communities to fund administrati ve eosts in setting Lip 
loan programs to homeowners at the community level. 

The Enabling Act was amended by the Massachusetts Legisilaturc on Apri I 2, 19l)~ 10 aulhoril:c the Trust 10 

establish a revolving fund program under the Safe Drinking Water Aet. 

In fiscal 2000, the State Legislature changed the level of subsidies on Trust loans from the 500/0 grant 
equivalency level to a flat 2% interest rate to be charged on loans for new projects beginning with Ihose 
appearing on the calendar year 2002 intended usc plan. This was in order to mitigate increases in contract 
assistance commitments by the Commonwealth , while the Trust could increase its leveraging ratio froiTl 
2: I to 3: I, increasing funding capacity by 50%. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Trust conform to US generally accepted accounting principles (Gi\APl as 
applicable to government enterprises. The following is a summary of the AutllOritv's ,;ignificant 
accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of Presentation 

The Trust's financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting as specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 's 
requirements for an enterprise fund. Operating revenues and expenses are generated through the 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTIOl\ ABATEME:\T TRUST 

(A Component Unit ofthc Commonwealth of Massaehusctts) 

Notes to Financial Statemcnts 

.June 30, 2007 and 2006 

issuance of loans to local government units within the Commonwealth. All other revenues and 
expenses are reported as nonoperating revenues and exrenses. 

Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accollnting (lnd 
Financial Reporting jilr PropriC'tary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That (he Proprietary 
Fund Accounting, the Trust has elected to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict 
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Trust's policy is to treat all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less as cash and cash equivalents. 

((~ Investments 

Investments are carried at fair value. Wherc applicable, fair values arc bascd upon quotations from 
nat iona I sec uri ty exchanges. 

Under the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust Program Resolutions (the Rcsolutions), 
as amended and supplemented at various bond sale dates, the Trust must maintain certain investment 
funds in the Federal SRF Loan Program and Commonwealth SRF Loan Program with U.S. Bank and 
Wells Fargo Bank (the Trustees). The types of funds held by the Trustees arc in the following 
accounts: 

Equity Accounts - The Equity Fund consists of cash and cash equivalents that are currently 
held primarily at the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MM DT). The Equity Fund 
comprises of both a federal program account and a Commonwealth program account and can 
be used for programmatic costs and operating expenses within the Federal SRF Loan Program 
or Commonwealth SRF Loan Program, as applicable. These funds are derived from: (I) funds 
drawn by the Trust from federal capitalization grants and Commonwealth matching funds; 
(2) other amounts paid to the Trust representing financial assistance provided pursuant to the 
Act for purposes of deposit in the Federal SRF Loan Program; (3) other amounts appropriated 
to the Trust by the Commonwealth for purposes of the Fedcral SRF Loan Program or 
Commonwealth SRF Loan Program; (4) direct loan repayment; (5) interest earnings on 
investment or deposits of amounts held in the Equity Fund; and (6) amounts transferrcd from 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund as a result of loan repayments in accordance with the 
provisions specified in the Resolutions. 

Interim Loan Accounts - The Interim Loan Fund has been established to fund temporary 
loans in anticipation of permanent leveraged borrowings. The source of funds is the Equity 
Fund. 

Project Accounts - The Project Funds disburse bond proceeds to borrowers as needed. These 
funds are restricted by the bond resolutions and are to be applied solely to the payment or 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEM[NT TRUST 

(A omponcnt Unit oCthe COll1monwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statclllents 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

refinancing of costs associatcd with the applicable project. When all costs havc been paid, {In 
amounts remaining unexpended in the Projec t Funds can be applied to the repayment uf thc 
applicable loan service to bondholders. The monies arc derived from semiannual loan 
repayments. which include payments from borrowers. intercst earnings on the Debt Service 
Reserve Funds. and COlllmonwealth contract assistanc(; paymcnts. 

Debt Service Reserve Accounts - Debt Service Reserve Funds consist 01' reServe requirements 
equal to 50'% of the principal amount outstanding on Clean Water bonds and 40% on Drinking 
Water bonds. For bonds issued to finance loa ns authorized by the 2002 and subsellllen t 
"Intended Use Plans", the debt service IT.'ave Cund requirement drops to 3J.J3% of the 
outstanding principal. In accordance with each bond reso lution, amounts are transferred Crom 
the Equity Fund to the particular Debt Service Reserve Funds. Intcrc.'t earnings on the Debt 
Service Reserve Funds arc transferred to their corrcsponding Rcvcnuc Fund and used for debt 
service payments. 

Debt Service Accounts - Debt Service Funds are used as a pass-through of principal and 
interest from the Revenue Funds to the bondholders. The Debt Service Funds are also used to 
hold accrued interest on the bonds to be applied to pay a portion of the interest due on the 
bonds. 

(d) Capital Assets 

The Trust's capital asset capitalization policy conforms to the C01llmonwealth's threshold of' 
S 15.000. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Trust did not havc any capital assets. 

(e) Loan Origination Fees and Costs of Issuance 

Fees received and certain direct costs inclm-ed. relating to the origination of loans. have heen 
deferrcd and are included with loans recci\'able in the accompanying balance sheets. Prim \0 lisl'al 
year 2006, loan origination fees and costs were amortized over the life of the loans. Origination fees 
charged to leveraged borrowers were capped at the estimated costs of leveraged transactions as 
proposed in the Trust's administrative budget and allocated to all borrowers. exduding Ihe Title V 
program. 

Beginning in fiscal year 2007, with the issuance of the Series II bonds, the Trust changed lIs polICY 
to require payment of loan origination fees at the time of the first debt sen,ice payment. Costs oj' 
issuance related to the bonds arc then offset against the amount of loan origination fees charged to 
borrowers. Remaining costs of issuance, if any, are then amortized over the life of the honds U:-;Itlg 

the straight-line method. 

Costs of issuance relating to the issuance of refunding bonds are amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the straight-line method. 
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(j) Risk Financing 

The Trust is not insured for casualty, thcft, tort claims, or other losses. ~o amounts have heen 
aecrucd for such losses as they are not considered material. As discussed in note I, all financial, 
management, and project oversight activities arc provided by employees of the State Treasurer's 
Office, DEP, and the Executive Office for Administration and Finance. These employees arc covcred 
under the Commonwealth's workers' compensation and group insurance (health) programs. The cost 
of these programs is allocated to the Trust, through the fringe benefit allocation. I\s described in 
note 4, thc Trust is allowed to cxpend up to 4% of the fcderal capitalization grant on program 
administration costs; therefore, any costs in cxcess of this amount will be borne by the 
Commonwealth . As a result, no liability for workers' compensation or group insurance has bccn 
recorded by the Trust. 

(g) Capitalization Grants 

Funding from fedcral capitalization grants and state matching grants arc recorded as nonoperating 
revenues. 

(h) Other Assets 

Other assets consist principally of the unamortized portion of bond issue costs, which arc amortized 
using thc straight-line method ovcr the life ofthc bonds, and other deferred charges. 

(i) Bond Premium 

Bond Premium, included in long-term debt, is amortized using the straight-line method over the life 
of thc associated bond issue. 

(j) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenditurcs during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from thosc 
estimates. 

(3) Deposits and Investments 

The Trust complies with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and invesrment Risk Disclosures . Cash, cash 
equivalents, and investments are separately held by several of the Trust's funds. 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Trust's cash and cash equivalents consist of bond proceeds received and not yet lent as well as 
project funds that have not yet bccn disbursed. All but a small portion of these amounts arc held by 
the Trustees and disbursed in accordance with executed loan agreements . A small portion of the cash 
and cash equivalents are held to pay the administrative costs of the Trust. 
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank deposits as well as investments in the MMDT. an cxtern:d 
investment pool managed by the State Treasurer for cities. towns. and other state and local agencies . 
For purposes of risk categorization. MMDT shares arc not categorized. The t~lir value of the Trust's 
position in MMDT is at unit value. 

Cllstodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that. in the event of a 
bank failure. the Trust's deposits may not be returned to it. The Trust docs 110t have :t deposit policy 
for custodial credit risk. 

At the end of the year, carrying amounts of the Trust's deposits were SO and SO. which equaled the 
bank balances. at June 30. 2007 and 2006. respectively. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006. SO and $0, 
respectively, of the Trust's deposits was covered by depositolY insurance and the remainder was 
exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized. 

(b) Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investmellts. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that. in the event 
of a failure of the counterparty. the Trust will not be able to recover the value of the il1\cstment or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Trust docs not have an 
investment policy for custodial credit risk. 

The Trust primarily invests in guaranteed investment contracts (GICs), which under GAAP. arc not 
subject to custodial credit disclosure because they are direct contractual investments and arc not 
securities. 

Credit Risk. The Trust has not adopted a formal policy related to credit risk. Although Ciles arc 
typically not rated, the G]C issuers are all rated AAA or AA. All GIC issuers th:.!t arc ra ted lower 
than AAA are fully collateralized at I05l~/o with U.S. Tr~asury securities or government-backed 
agency notes. MMDT is not rated. 

The fair value and maturities of the Trust's in\'~stmel1t arc presented below (in thousands): 

I n\'estment type 

Debt securities: 
Guaranteed investment 

contracts 

Cash equivalent: 
to.-\3s";Khusel1s Municipal 

Depository Trust 
(MMDT) 

Total 

2006 2007 
Fair value 

S 1.377.242 1.5116.919 

281 .797 254.059 

investments S 1.659.039 1.820,978 
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L~ss than I 

Inwstment maturiti(,s (in yean) 

I to 5 Ii to 10 

-' .(,06 

"ur(' than 
10 
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Concentration 0/ Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss artributed to the 
magnitude of a government's investment in a single issu r. The Trust places no limit on the amount 
that may be invested in anyone issuer. More than 4% of the Trust's total investments arc with thc 
following issuers: 

Issuer: 
FSA Capital Management Services, LLC 
IXIS Funding Corp. 
Trinity Funding Company, LLC 
Societe Gencrale 

Percent of 
total 

investments 

29% 
29 
16 
4 

interest Rate Risk. The Trust does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair-value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 

(4) Capitalization Grants 

The operating agreements for the federal capitalization grants require that the Trust enter into binding 
commitments with local government units within one year of the receipt of each fedcral grant payment to 
provide assistance in an amount equal to 120% (including 20% state matching grants) of each federal 
capitalization grant. Federal grant payments are received by the Trust in the form of an automated clearing 
house account. For financial statement purposes, federal capitalization grants and the 20% state matching 
grants has been recognized in the Federally Capitalized SRF for the amount of executed loan agreements 
and binding commitments. 
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• • • 
• • 
III 

• 
The Federal Safe Drinking Water Program and the Federally Capitalized Comlllunity I [ardship Lnan 
Program h'IVe different allocation percentages. For rhe Federal Safe Drinking Water Program, eaeh grant tIC 
year has a different allocation based on the amount of federal "set-asides" used. An additional 20% or • 
55 .9 million \vas matched from requin::d state matching funds already on hand at the Trust. ;\11 draws for 
project costs and for reSt:rve funding must ll1aint'lin this proportionality under the Federal arc Drinking 
Water Act. On a cash basis: for 2007 and 2006. the proportionality is dctermined as follows (in thousands): 

Clean water program 

Federal capitalization 
State match on federal funds (20% ) 

Total capitalization 

Less federally mandated "sct-asides" 

Project capitalization 

Federal proportionality 
State proportionality 

Drinking water program 

Federal capitalization 
State match on federal funds (20%) 

Total capitalization 

Less federally mandated "set-asides" 

Project capitalization 

Federal proportionality 
State proportionality 

Fiscal year 
2007 

$ 29.731 
5,946 

35,677 

( 1,427) 

34,250 $======== 
80% 
20 

Fiscal year 
2007 

22.036 
4,407 

26,443 

(6 .831 ) 

s 19.612 
====== 

80% 
20 

2006 

3(',5X6 
7.317 

43,903 

(1.756) 

42.147 

80% 
20 

2006 

29.621 
5,924 

35. "4 : 

(6. _27) 

29,318 

8 ()O'u 

20 

The Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program is unchanged from previous years. The total I(.'ckral 
award and the state matching funds of 20% arc reduced by 4% for an administrative allowance. The total 
amount available for financing is net of this allowance. 
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(5) Loans Receivable and Bonds Purchased 

The Trust issued a total of 90 and 97 loan or bond purchase agreements during fiscal 2007 and 2006, 
respectively. Additionally, 14 and 45 loans were disbursed under the Community Septic Management 
Program Fund in 2007 and 2006, respectively. Pursuant to agreements with the EPA, bond purchase 
agreements are used for extended financing with terms beyond 20 years. In 2007, 8 of the 90 agreements 
issued were issued as 30-year bond purchase agreements to the towns of Fall River, Holyoke. Kingston , 
MilibUly, Newbury, Ncwburyport, and Upper Blackstone Water Pollution Abatement District and the 
Massachusctts Watcr Resources Authority (MWRA), for at total of $168.7 million. 

A summary of these receivablcs as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Leveraged loans or bonds purchased 
Direct loans 
Interim loans 

Current portion 

Long-term portion 

$ 

$ 

2007 

3,009,062 
50 

34,553 

3,043,665 

174,621 

2,869,044 =========== 

2006 

2,692,350 
69 

46,476 

2,738,895 

171,3X2 

2,567,513 

Aggregate principal maturities on loans receivable or bonds purehascd arc as follows (amounts in 
thousands) : 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
Thereafter 

$ 139,393 
142,573 
147,880 
151,055 
153,0 II 

2,275,150 

$ 3,009,062 

I nterim loans of $34,538,344 and direct loans of $16,500 also mature in 2008. 

Subsidy payments to be applied to repayments from borrowers include interest earnings provided by Debt 
Service Reserve Funds and contract assistance provided to the Trust by the Commonwealth . Both of these 
subsidies are expected to be available for the lives of the financing agreements. For the leveraged bond 
purchase program, pursuant to an agreement with the Commonwealth, subsidies are drawn in an amount as 
if the financing was for a twenty-year period. The amount that is not currently needed is invested at the 
applicable bond yield until funds are needed for subsidies beyond year 20, similar to an annuity . If subsidy 
funds are not available, the obligation of the borrower is increased by such shortfall . 
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The agreement requires the borrower to pay the Trust an annual or semiallnual servlclIlg lee equal to 
0.15% or 0.075%, respectively, of the principal obligatioll outstanding on the applicable date. As or 
Jun~ 30, 2007, all bOlTowers have opted fix the scmiannual paymcnt schcduk. None or these fcl'S arc 
capitalized as part ofa borrower's obligation to the Trust. 

Bonds Payable 

Tht:: following is a summary or bonds payable at June 30, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands): 

Beginning Ending »uc within 

balancl' Additions Reductions balance ont year 

\Vater Pollution Abatement 
Rcvenue Bonds: 

MWRA Loan Program: 
Series 1993A. 4.5% 10 5A5°;.), 

issued March 1){.199J.due 
2000 to 2013 S 5.375 U)90 4.2X:i 'ISO 

Series 1993B. 4.3 % to 5.25%. 
isslIed January 0. 1994. due 
2000102014 4.1i60 735 3.92: (,90 

Seri.:s 1995:\.4.5% to 6.0%. 
issueJ November 21, 
1995. due :WOO 10 2015 :'.720 835 4.X){5 9 -

Scri.:s 1998A. 4 .0% to 

5.375% . issued July 9. 
1998. due 2000 10 2018 11.665 I,2XO 10.31'5 I. _50 

Series 20021\. 3.0% to 
5.25 % . issued OClOba 15. 
2002. clue 2003 to 20:;2 XS.280 34.240 )4.()40 3.4:'5 

Soulh Esscx Sewage Dislric\ 
Lonn Program: 

Series 1994A. 5.3% to 6.375% . 
issued November I . 1994. 
due 2001 to 2015 6.265 1.025 5. 240 ')05 

Series 1996A. 4.25 % 106.0%. 
issucd December 5. 1996. 
due 2000 to 2016 7.360 955 6AO:; () ()~ 

New BedforJ Loan Program: 
Series 19961\.4.8% to 6 .0%. 

issued July 10. 1996. due 
2000 to 2016 10,340 1.570 ~. 70 I A 911 

Pool Lonn Program: 
Scrics 1.4.75% to 5.6%, 

iss ued July 14, 1993. 
due 2000 10 20 I 3 21.850 20,558 1.292 323 
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Beginning 
balance Additions Reductions 

Series 2, 4.9% to 6.125%, 
issued Jum: I , 1995. 
due 200 1 1020 15 S 7,34 5 2,460 

Series 3. 4.6% to 6.0% , 
issued Apri I 29. 1997, 
due 200 I to 20 I 7 26,465 7.0 7 

Series 4, 4.0% to 5.125%, 
issued December 9, 1998, 
due 2000 to 20 I K 43.I RO 7.800 

Series 5, 4.25% to 5.75%, 
issued October 6, 1999. 
due 2000 to 2029 R2,960 11.6 10 

Series 6. 4.5% to 5.66% 
issued NOI'\:mber 6, 2000, 
due 200 I to 20 30 121 ,400 14. 245 

Series 7, 3.0% to 5.25% 
issued Jul y 15,200 I, 
due 200 I to 2021 2 18.680 13,115 

Series R, 3.0% to 5.0%, 
issued November 15, 2002 , 
due 2003 to 2032 133 ,530 10.OH5 

Series 9, 2.0% to 5 .0% , 
issued October 10, 2003, 
clue 2004 to 2033 290,825 150.43 5 

Series 10,2.5% to 5.25%, 
issued August 25. 2004, 
due 2005 to 2028 307,030 178.910 

Series 11.3 .0% to 5.25%, 
issued October 19,2005. 
due 2006 to 2029 293,760 94.955 

Series 12,3.0% to 5.25%, 
issued December 14,2006, 
due 2007 to 2030 431 ,05 0 

Subord ina ted Revenue 
Refunding Bonds: 

New Bedford Loan Program: 
Series 1998A, 4.0% to 5.25%, 

issued December 23 , 1998, 
clue 200 I to 2026 10 7.920 2,940 

MWRA Loan Program: 
Series 1999A. 4.2% to 6 .0%, 

issued November 3,1999. 
due 2000 to 2029 292.R50 9.845 

37 

Ending Oue within 
hal a nce one year 

4 , K~5 2,(,10 

19,395 6.625 

35JXO R.O 15 

7 1 .. ,50 11.915 

107.1 55 14 .645 

205,565 13.770 

123,445 10,285 

140,390 11,0 75 

12R,I20 10 ,680 

198,805 12.360 

431,050 11.860 

104 ,980 3.135 

283 .005 10,555 
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Beginning 
balance Additions Red II clions 

Pool Program Relil11ding: 
Series A and B, 2.0%, to 5.25°,<,. 

issued August 25. 2004. 
due 2005 to 10::X $ 644.660 l)~tl 

Pool Program Rdunding: 
S.;:ries 2006. 3.0% to 5.2 -%. 

issued Dccclllba 14. 200b 
due 2007 to 2030 .:II h.2 .'\5 R.02() 

Subtotal U32.120 R.:I 7. 2X5 :' 74. 75X 

Less un amol1ized amounts : 
Bond pn:mium 120.749 56.0l)J 1l) . .'XX 
I et unamol1izcd excess of 

reacquisition price over net 
carrying value of dcfeased bonds (4X.711) (22.755) 12.120) 

Total bonds payabk S 2.XO.:l.15X XXO.62.1 591 .1126 

Ending 
balance 

643.6XtJ 

4()~.21 'i 

\.004.M 7 

1:' 7.254 

(,X .741» 

J .()I) J .15 5 

The follo\\' ing is a summary of bonds payable at June 30, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands): 

Beginning Endin:.: 
balance A.dditions Reductions balance 

WaleI' Pollulion Abalemenl 
Re,,:nue Bonds: 

MWRA Loan Program: 
Series 1993A . .:1 .5"'0 105.45%. 

issued March I X, 1993. due 
:WOO 10 201.1 S 6.565 1.190 5. 375 

Series 19938.4 .3% 10 5.25%. 
issUl:d January 6. 1994. due 
2000102014 5.430 770 4.6h() 

Series 1995/1.. 4.5" ';' 106.0%. 
issued NO\'l'mbcr 21 . 
1995. due 2000 to 2015 6.5RO XhO 5. 20 

Series 1998A. 4.0% to 
5.375%, issued July 9. 
1998. due 2000 to 20 I X 12.970 1.:l05 II.fiI>5 

Series 20021\. 3.0% to 
5.25%. issued October 15. 
2002. Oil': 2003 III 2032 91.550 3,270 X ~ .2XO 

38 

Due within 
one y~ilr 

1.000 

13') .. )93 

1.1'> .31)3 

Due within 
om' ) l'Ol r 

I.09() 

1~ 

XJ:, 

1.2SI) 

3.365 
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Beginning 
balance Additions Reductions 

South Essex Sewage District 
Loan Program: 

Series 1994A. 5.3% to 6.375%, 
issued l'-<ovember I. 1994, 
dUl: 200 I to 2015 S 7,340 1.075 

Series 1996/\ . 4.25°;;, to 6.0%, 
issued December 5, 1996. 
due 2000 to 2016 8,365 1.005 

New Bedford Loan Program: 
Series 1996/\,4.8% to 6.0%. 

issued July 10 , 1996, due 
2000 to 2016 t 1.985 1.645 

Pool Loan Program: 
Series 1,4.75 % to 5.6%, 

issued July 14. 1993, 
due 2000 to 20 13 25,270 3,420 

Series 2. 4.9% to 6.125%, 
issued June I, 1995. 
due 200 I to 2015 9,680 2,335 

S..:ri..:s 3, 4.6% to 6.0%, 
issued April 29, 1997, 
duc2001 t02017 33,310 6.845 

Series 4.4.0% to 5.125%. 
issued December 9, 1998, 
due 2000 to 2018 50,800 7,620 

Series 5, 4.25% to 5.75%, 
issued October 6. 1999, 
due 2000 to 2029 94,300 11,340 

Series 6, 4 .5% to 5.66% 
issued November 6, 2000, 
due 200 I to 2030 135.290 13.890 

Series 7, 3.0% to 5.25% 
issued July 15 , 200 I, 
due 200 I to 2021 230,305 11.625 

Series 8, 3.0% to 5.0%, 
issued November 15, 2002, 
due 2003 to 2032 143,455 9.925 

Series 9, 2.0% to 50%, 
issued October 10,2003. 
due 2004 to 2033 301,265 10.440 

Series 10,2.5% to 5.25%. 
issued August 25, 2004, 
due 2005 to 2028 317,175 10,145 

Series I I, 3.0% to 5.25%, 
issued October 19. 2005. 
due 2006 to 2029 293,760 

39 

Ending Due within 
balance one year 

6.2(,) 1.025 

7.360 955 

10,340 1.570 

21. 850 2,655 

7.345 2,460 

26,465 7,070 

43,180 7.800 

82,960 11.610 

121,400 14,245 

218.1i80 13 , 115 

133.530 10.085 

290,825 10,875 

307,030 10 .290 

293,760 7,220 
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Beginning 
balance Additions Reductions 

Subordinall:d Revenuc 
Rd'unding Bonds: 

New Bedford Loan Program: 
Scries I 99l)A, 4.0% to 5. 25%. 

issued December 23. 199X. 
duc 200 I to 2026 $ 110,675 2 . 7 ~5 

IWRA Loan Program: 
Series 19(1)1\. 4.2% to 6 .0~!o . 

issllcd No vcmber 3. 19 )9 . 
due 200n to 2029 302,085 ') .2.,5 

Poo l Program Rcl'unding: 
Series 1\ and B. 2.0 'Yo to 5.2 5%. 

issued I\ugu~t 25. 2004 . 
due 2005 to 201R 645. ()20 l)6() 

Subtota l 2.550,015 ~9 J. 7(1) I I \.(,55 

Less unamortized amounts: 
Bond premium I 14 .• (,0 10.3D9 4.4_0 
Net unamorti l.ed eXcess of 

re'\Cquisition rri ce over net 
carrying value of dcfeased bonds ( -0.(54) (2 .243 ) 

Tota l bonds payable S 2.6 13.921 304.069 I IJ.RJ 2 

Ending DUl' within 
balance ont' yC'ar 

107,')20 2.')40 

292 ,X50 ')Jq:i 

()44.f>i,1i <) ~ U 

2.7.12 . 120 12 2.045 

120.749 

(4X. 7 11 ) 

2.X04. 15 R 122 .045 

All bonds arc payable from amounts pledged pursuant to the Water Pollution Abatement Proj c t Bond 
Resolutions, which include payments by the local governmental units of principal and interest on the loans 
and amounts on deposit in the Debt Se rvice Reserve Funds. Pursuant to the Commonwealth As!'; i ~ tancc 

Contract (the Contract), the Commonwealth has agreed to provide Contract Ass istance paYll1ellls to the 
Trust to reduce the payments by local governmental units . The Contract is not pledged as security ror the 
bonds; however, the Contract Assistance payments, when received by the Trust. arc pkdged as sec urit y lur 
the bonds. 

In December 2006, the Trust issued $431.1 million in new bonds with its Pool Program Serie~ 11. Thes' 
monies were used to finance water pollution abatement and drinking water proj ects in 70 communiti es and 
special districts. 

In December 2006, the Trust issued $416.2 million in refunding bonds (at a true interest cost of 403~IO ) a ~ 

a partial advanced refunding of several previous Trust bond i. sues . The iss ues that were partiall y refund e d 

were Pool Program Series 9, 10, and II and MWRA Loan Program Series 2002A. The total debt defeased 
through this new issue was $426.8 million, for a cash flow savings of $41.4 million, and an economic gain 
(net present value) of$24 million. 

40 (Continued) 



MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

!'Jotes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

All issuance costs of the transaction Wl:rl: paid from bond proceeds, anu the reljuirl:d tkbt service reserves 
were invested in G res. The remaining proceeus were deposited with an escrow agl:nt to provide resourCl:S 
for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result. thl: rl:funded bonds arc considl:rl:u 
to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the tinancial statements. The reac4uisition price 
exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $22.8 million, which is being netted against the new 
debt issued. 

In November 2005, the Trust issued $293.8 million in new bonds with its Pool Program Scries II. These 
monies were used to finance water pollution abatement and drinking water projects in 55 communities and 
special districts. 

Total 
debt service Principal Interest 

Year ending June 30: 
2008 $ 286,323 139,393 146,930 
2009 280,935 142,574 138,361 
2010 279,804 147,880 131,924 
201 I 276,255 151,055 125,200 
2012 271,319 153,012 118,307 
2013 - 2017 1,278,271 798,423 479,848 
2018 - 2022 995,498 721,675 273,823 
2023 - 2027 591,318 471,495 119,823 
2028 - 2032 234,933 191,890 43,043 
2033 - 2037 94,824 87,250 7,574 

$ 4,589,480 3,004,647 1,584,833 

The balances of bonds defeased "in-substance" in prior years and still outstanding as of June 30 are as 
follows (amounts in thousands): 

Description 

MWRA Loan Program: 
Series 1993A 
Series 1993B 
Series 1995A 
Series I998A 
Series 1999 A 
Series 2002A 
Series 2002A 

Redemption 
date 

November 3, 1999 $ 
November 3, 1999 
November 3, 1999 
November 3, 1999 

August 25, 2004 
August 25, 2004 

December 14, 2006 

41 

Outstanding principal amount 
2007 2006 

52,380 
39,445 
43,730 
79,760 
57,705 
26,980 
43,360 

59,910 
42,990 
47,015 
83,385 
57,705 
26,980 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABA'l'EMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Description 

New Bedford Loan Program: 
Series 1996A 

South Essex Sewagc District 
Loan Program: 

Series 1996A 

Pool Loan Program: 
Pool 2 
Pool 3 
Pool 4 
PoolS 
Paolo 
Pool 7 
Pool 8 
Pool 9 
Pool 10 
Pool II 

(7) Net Assets 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2007 and 2006 

Redemption 
date 

Deet:mber 23, 1998 $ 

July 15, 200 I 

July 15,200 I 
July 15,2001 

August 25. 2004 
August 25. 2004 
August 25. 2004 
August 25, 2004 
August 25. 2004 

December 14, 2006 
December 14.2006 
December 14,2006 

Outstanding principal amount 
2007 2006 

71,560 77 .660 

41,920 45.060 

20,720 20.720 
51,695 51,695 
63.765 63,765 

125,240 125,240 
154,850 I -4,X50 
59,330 59, 30 

105,045 105.045 
156,270 
184,725 
89,325 

As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Tmst has restricted net assds in the amount of $1,453 billilln and 
$1.390 billion, respectively. and unrestricted net assets in the amount of $176.596 milli on and 141...l10 
million, respectively, Restricted net assets represent capitalization grants rece ived cumulative to datc from 
the U,S. Environmental Protection Agency and corresponding matching amounts received from the 
Commonwealth. The capitaliza tion grants are restricted to provide financial ass istance. but not grants. t) 
local communities and interstate agencics for the construction of wastewater treatmcnt works. drinking 
water infrastructure improvements, and other related projects as described in note I. 

(8) Commitment 

As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Trust has agreed to provide loans to various local governmellt units 
amounting to approximately $23, I million and $64 ,7 million. respectively, excluding loans to be disburseu. 
which will be funded or collateralized with grant awards received by the Trust. 

(9) Derivative Transactions 

(a) Interest Rate Swap Forward Agreement: $194,825,000 dated May 23,2007 

Objective 0/ the interest rale .nl'ap - The objective of the swap is to hedge market risk associated 
with the current refunding of $185,450,000 in MWRA Series 1999A bonds on August I, 2009, If 
these bonds were available to be refunded with fixed rate bonds on the date of the swap. the Trust 
would have been able to reduce its overall debt service by $12.0 million dollars, or 6.5% on a net 
present value basis, and would have reduced the debt service of the MWRA by $7.9 million, Legally, 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEVIENT TRUST 

(A Compollent Unit of thc Commonwcalth of Massachusctts) 

Notes to Financial Statcmcnts 

June 30. 2007 and 2006 

however, these bonds cannot be advance refunded, and can only be refunded on their call date , 
August 1, 2009. This interest rate swap hcdges market risk until the call datc. locking in Ilct prcscnt 
value savings 01'5.6% ifcash settled, or 7.0% ifcxccuted. 

Terms - The Effective Date is August 1, 2009. The Termination Date, if the swap is cxccuted on the 
Effective Date, is August 1,2029. Otherwise, the Tennination Date is August 1.2009. The notional 
amount is $194 ,825 ,000. The Applicable Notional Amount declines from the Notional Amount to 
zero from the Effective Date to the Tennination Date on a schedulc that effedively allows the Trust 
to make level payments for the tenn of the agreement. The counterparty is MLCS. 

If the Trust elects to execute the swap on the Effective Date, under the swap the Trust pays the 
counterparty, MLCS. a fixed payment of 4 .102% and receives a variable payment of USO-SIFMA 
Municipal Swap Index on the Applicable Notional Amount. 

Fair value - As of June 30. 2007 , the approximate fair market value of this swap is positive 
$1.0 I 0 million. [t is the Trust's policy to disclose the dealer 's valuation and to verify the valuation 
using a swap advisor. This valuation was calculated using the zero-coupon method. This method 
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward 
rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments are 
then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon 
bonds duc on the date of each future net settlement of the swap. 

Credit risk - As of June 30, 2007, the Trust was exposed to credit risk because the swap carried a 
positive valuation of$1.010 million . The swap counterparty was rated AA-/Aa3/AA- by Standard & 
Poor's, Moody's Investors Service, and Fitch Ratings, respectively. but has subsequently been 
downgraded to A+/AI/A+. To mitigate credit risk, the Tnlst has the right to tenninate at any time, 
including upon ratings downgrade by the eounterparty. 

Basis risk - As of June 30, 2007, the Trust was not exposed to basis risk, as this transaction is not 
effective until August 1,2009. After the Effective Date, if the Trust chooses to execute the swap, the 
Trust will be exposed to basis risk to the extent that the USD-SIFMA Municipal Swap Index differs 
from the variable rate on the bonds to be issued by the Trust. At that time, it is the Trust's intention 
to mitigate the potential for basis risk through the funding of a reserve fund or allocating excess cash 
flows to the swap payment. 

Termination risk - The swap contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master 
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. In 
addition, the Trade Confirmation stipulates that the swap automatically tenninates on the Effective 
Date, or will be executed upon the Trust's option . It further stipulates that the Trust and counterparty 
may designate an Early Tennination Date at any time. The Trust and the counterparty may terminate 
if either party fails to perfonn under the tenns of the Contract. If at the time oftennination, the swap 
has a negative fair value, the Trust would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the 
swap' s fair value. The source of funds for this payment may be from refunding bond proceeds or 
from "legally available funds ." Legally avail able funds is defined as, "funds held in the Trusts 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A omponent Unit of the (ommonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30. 2007 and 2006 

Feder'll Clean Water State Revolving Fund or Drinking Water State Revolving Fund ... only to the 
extent that Congress passes a law or EPA adopts a regulation or issucs an opinion or other 
notice ... making such amounts legally available to pay scttlement amounts ... " 

Swap pa.l"nents and associated deht. As of June 30. 2007, the swap had not rcached its E rrect i ve 
Date. The Trust is liable for no swap payments at this time. 

I r the Trust executes thc swap transact ion and issues variablc rate bonds on or bd'o re A ugust I, 2009, 
using interest rates as of June 30. 2007 (assume this interest rate remains the samc tor the knn), the 
total savings over the term would be $19.3 million ($12.9 million net present value) . 

(b) Interest Rate Swap Agreements: $77,255.000 dated November 21, 2006 

Objective o/the interest rate .5I1"afJ - Thc objcctive of the swap is to reduce the Trust's bOlTowing 
costs by comparison to the issuance of fixed rate bonds at the time of issuance in December 2006. 
The Trust entered into two swap agreements, under the same tc ITl1S , to creatc "synthetic tixed ratc" 
bonds for maturing in 2022 and 2023. 

Terms - Under the terms of these swaps. the Trust agrees to receive a variable rate. based on the 
Consumer Price Index, equal to the amounts due on variable rate bonus issued by the Trust 
concurrently with the execution of the swap agreement. The Trust agrees to pay a lixed ral\: to the 
counterparty. Payments are made semiannually, due August I and Febntary I of each year. on the 
same schedule as the fixed rate bonds issued in December 2006. The counterparty is Bear Steams 
Capital Markets, Inc. The terms of each swap agreement arc summarized below: 

Trade date 
Effective date 
Variable rate bond coupon payments 
Variable rate payment from counterparty 
Fixed rate payment to counterparty 
Synthetic fixed rate on bonds 

2022 Termination 

November 21, 2006 
Deccmber 14. 2006 

CPI + 0.99% 
CPI + 0.99% 

3.88% 
3.88% 

2023 Termination 

Nove mber :2 I, :200() 
Dccember 14, 2006 

(PI f 0.99% 
CPI 0.99% 

3.90% 
3.90% 

Fair value - As of June 30, 2007, the approximate fair market value of these swaps is rositi\.c 
$520,000. It is the Trust's policy to disclose the dealer's valuation, and to verify the valuation u .~ing 

a swap advisor. This valuation was calculated using the zero-coupon method. This method calculates 
the future net settlement payments required by the swap. assuming that the curTcnt forward rates 
implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest raks. These payrncnts are then 
discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon 
bonds due on the date of each future net settlement of the swap. 

Credit risk - As of June 30, 2007, the Trust was exposed to credit risk because the swaps carried a 
positive valuation of $520,000. The swap counterparty is guaranteed by The Bear Steams Companies 
Inc, which was rated A+/A I /A+ by Standard & Poor's, Moody's rnvestors Service, and fitch 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUnON ABATE!VIE!'IT TRUST 

(A Componcnt Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notcs to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

Ratings, respectively, but Standard & Poor's subsequently downgraded to A. To mitigate credit risk, 
the Trust has the right to terminate the swar upon a ratings dO\vngrade by the counterpalty's credit 
support provider below BBB-/Baa4 by Standard & Poor's, and Moody's Investors Service. 
respectively. 

Basis risk - As of June 30, 2007, the Trust is not exposed to basis risk, as the variable rate payable 
by the Trust on its bonds is exactly equal to the variable rate rayment by the counterparty to the 
Trust, cpr + 0.99%. 

Termination risk - The swap contract uses the International Swar Dealers Association Master 
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. [n 
addition, the Trust may terminate upon a ratings downgrade by the cOllnterparty, as described above . 
The Trust and the counterparty may tenninate if either party fails to perform under the terms of the 
Contract. Ifat the time oftennination, the swap has a negative fair value, the Trust would be liable to 
the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap's fair value. The source of funds for this payment is 
from "legally available funds." Legally available funds is defined as, "funds held in the Trusts 
Federal Clean Water State Revolving Fund or Drinking Water State Revolving Fund . .. only to the 
extent that Congress passes a law or EPA adopts a regulation or issues an opinion or other 
notice . .. making such amounts legally available to pay settlement amounts .. . " 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POl.LUTlON ABATEMENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the COlTlmonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

./une 30,2007 and 2006 

Swap paymel/fs and associafed dehf. Under these swaps, the variabk rail: is cakulated on August I 
and February I. As of June 30, 2007. the February I calculation was most recent. Assllming this rate 
remains the same, debt st:rvice requirements of the variable rate debt and net swap payments arc as 
follows. As the CPI varies, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary, 
but because the variable rate payments on the bonds and the variable rate receipts from the swap are 
equaL the net debt service will remain tixed. 

Fiscal year ending June 30: 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

s 

Variable rate bonds* 
Principal Interest 

30,650,000 
46,605,000 

2,289.838 
2,289,838 
2,289,838 
2.289,838 
2,289,838 
2,289.838 
2.289.838 
2,289,838 
2.289.838 
2.289,838 
2.289,838 
2,289,838 
2,289,R38 
2.289,838 
1.835,605 

690,686 

* Rate as of February 1,2007. the last reset offiscal 2007. 
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Net swap 
payments 

716,977 
716,977 
716.977 
716,977 
716,977 
7Ifl.977 
716.977 
716 ,977 
716.977 
716.977 
716.977 
716.977 
716.977 
716,977 
576.600 
218, III 

Total 

3.006815 
3,006.815 
3.006.815 
3.006.815 
3,00h,815 
3,006.1< 15 
3.006.815 
3.006.815 
3,006.815 
3,006.815 
3.000.81 -
3,006.815 

.006.815 
3.006.815 

33 ,062 .205 
47.5 13.797 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER 
POLLUTION ABATE!VrENT TRUST 

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Note ... to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2007 and 2006 

(10) Policy Revision 

[n November 2005, the Trust issued $293,760,000 of Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust Pool 
Program Bonds, Series II. [n conjunction with this bond issue, the Trust revised its bond resolution and 
standard loan and bond purchase agreements substantially. The purpose of these revisions was to separate 
the cash flows and security of the Series II loan portfolio from the Series I I bonds. This provides more 
flexibility to the Trust and its borrowers while making the program easier to account and buJgct for. Below 
is a summary of the principal changes to the credit structure. 

a) Elimination ol Matched Book Requirement. Prior to this change, the Trust was required to carry a 
"matched book" where principal, interest, and subsidies within the loan portfolio perfectly matched 
principal, interest, and subsidies within the bond portfolio. This resulted in cumbersome accounting 
and budgeting requirements for both the Trust and its borrowers. Beginning "vith the Series II 
bonds, the Trust will be required to show sufficiency of aggregate cash llows necessary to repay the 
bonds. 

b) Par Loan Stl1lclure. All loans will be made at a par amount equal to the amount borrowed. Prior to 
Series II, any bond premium realized by the Trust was passed through to the communities as a 
grant, which then reduced the par amount of the loan. As a result of this change, in fiscal 2006, grant 
disbursements by the Trust were eliminated, compared to $20.8 million in fiscal 2005. 

c) £Iimination o(Gross Pledge. Communities now are required to provide a pledge equal to the amount 
of principal and interest due to the Trust, net of subsidies by the Trust and the Commonwealth. Prior 
to this change, communities were required to pledge the gross amount of the loan at a rate equal to 
the rate paid by the Trust on its bonds. This eases the accounting and budgeting requirements for the 
borrowers. 

(II) Subsequent Events 

(n December 2007, the Trust expects to issue $352,320,000 of Pool Program Bonds, Series 13. These 
bonds will be issued to fund 109 loans in the Clean Water, Safe Drinking Water. and Community Scptic 
Management (Title V) programs. 
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Massachus.ctts \\'acer Pollution Abalement Trusl 
Combining Schedule or Re\'eoues, Elpcnse;: and Ch~iUlg(-S in Ntl Assels 
June 30. 2007 (\Vilh Comparafive Amounls is or JUlie 30.2006) 

Fedenotl), 
Capitalized 

State 
Revoh'ing Fund 

Commoo,""ullb or 
MasSOIchusctts 

Capitalized State 
Revoh'ing Fund 

Program 

for 
General 

Community 
Sepfic Sysc(,nt 

LoOlO 

Fedenll)' 
CapitalUed 

Sare Drinking Warer 
R('\'oh'ing fund 

Common"'ulCh of 
Massachusctts Capiulized 

Sare Drinking \V:iller 
ReYolving fund 

Federolly 
Capilali:ted 

ComDlunit)' 
Hard~hip Loan 

Loan PrograDI Loin Program Opcnl"ions Program Lo:iln Program L.m&n Prognam Program 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Loan servicing fc,,'s 
Loan originluion f,cs 
ImereSIII1l:"omc 

TOlal operating rcvcnues 

OPERATI:'>IG EXPENSES: 
Comlllonwealth of Ma..;..:;achusetts - Department 
of Environmental Proh:clion - progr3mm3lic 
suppon cOSts 

InlrnFund Tr~n ... feP.i 
General and adlllim~traliyt:: 
Arbitrngc rebal..: fuyml'nl, 
Gran! disbnr~cmenL<; 
Inlcn.."S1 expense 

TOLaI operating cxpensc:i 

OPERATINC INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING HI/COME: 
Opcr<aling Gr.lJ11 Rtvcnuc: 

U.S. Envirunmt:nlal Protection Agency 
Commonwealth of MassachuSt:u,S 

Contraci As:.islancc: 

('onulhmwcahh of i\·tassachusetts 
Capilaliulivn Gr..lnt RCYl'nue: 

U.S. Environmental Proleclion Agency 
capilalizallon gr..lnLS 

C oITlillonwcahh of M~.sa(huscl1s 

matching grnnts 

TotJ.1 

NET I.'ICOME (lOSS) 

NEr ASSETS. IIEGINNING OF YEAR 

I'iET ASSETS. EN\) OF YEAN 

147.247 374 

147.247 374 

3.054 
10.943 2S 
:!.242 
3.886 

105 .700 ~4 

125.~25 122 

21.422 252 

29.731 

5.946 

35.677 

57,0<)9 252 

I.2U2.563 ~6.400 

1.259.602 26.(,52 

3.9 1 ~ 
1.387 

948 

6.249 

1.27.1 
l, /' lJ.' 

.',066 

3.183 

).1 R3 

25.M2 

2~.S25 

1.241 

1.241 

124 
(3.415) 

).~75 

(16) 

1.257 

1.257 

.2;:';.~~4 

30.101 

29.535 

29.5.15 

5.571 7.S5J 
(8.832) 

476 

:!U,·4,)Q 

17.674 1.85) 

11.~61 (7.853) 

7,1<53 

n.036 

1.160 

23.196 7 .~53 

35.U57 

241) .351 

2'4.4U~ 

(3) 

(3) 

Combined Total!!; 
6/3012007 613012006 

3.914 S 
1,387 

179,345 

184.6-16 

16.002 

4511 
J.8Il6 

129,528 

154,527 

30.119 

7.MS3 

51.767 

7.106 

66.726 

96.845 

1.532.90.1 

1.629.748 

3.646 
28 

11>3,391 

167.065 

15.106 

1.145 
1.0.15 

1,340.793 

ISI,56S 

IS.5OO 

7.85.1 

654 

66.207 

7.117 

H2.031 

97.531 

1.435..112 

1.532.9113 



• 

THIS PAGE LEFT lNTENTrONALLY BLANK 

50 



Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust 
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

Statistical Section 
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Statistical Section - Tnble of Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trcnd information to help understand how the Trust's financial performance <lnd 
well being have changed over timc . 

Five Year Schedule of 15 Largest Borrowers 
Ten Year Schedule of Changes in Nct Assets 

Revenue Capacity 

54 
55 

These schedules contain infollllation to help the reader assess the factors affecting the Trust's ability to 
service interim loans and general operations. 

Ten Y car Combined Schedule of Operating Revenues by Source 56 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Trust's current levels 
of outstanding debt and Trust's ability to isslle debt in the future. 

Ten Year Pledged Revenue Coverage 
Ten Year Schedule of Operating Expenses 

Demographic and Economic Information 

57 
58 

This schedule offers demographic and economic impact for the population of Massachusetts and the ;Iid 
provide by the Commonwealth to the Trust. 

Eight Year Schedule of Contract Assistance Provided by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 
Massachusetts Population, and Per Capita Contract Assistance 59 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain information about the Trust's operations and resources to help the reader 
understand how the Trust's financial information relates to the services the Trust provides. 

Three Year Schedule of Full Time Employee's by Program and Agency 60 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted. the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial report for the relevant year. The Trust implemented Statement 44 in 2006. 
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Statistical Section - Supporting Narrative 

Federally Capitalized State Revolving Fund - is used to account for amounts received and 
expended from the Federally Capitalized SRF, proposed by Title VI of the Clean Water Act, along 
with amounts received and expended from the 20% required state matching of federal funding. 
The fund also is used to account for receipts and disbursements for loan and bond transactions not 
accounted for in the Commonwealth Capitalized SRF. 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Capitalized State Revolving Loan Fund - is used to account 
for amounts received and expended form the Commonwealth Capitalized SRF. 

General Operations Fund - is used to account for amounts received and expended for the general 
and administrative costs not applicable to the other three funds. 

Community Septic Management Fund - is used to account for amounts received and expended 
for the purpose of funding loans and assistance payments to eligible communities under the 
Commonwealth's Title V regulations. 

Federally Capitalized Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund - is used to account for 
amounts received and expended from the Federally Capitalized SRF, proposed by the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1996, along with amounts received and expended from the required state 
matching of federal funding. 

Commonwealth Capitalized Drinking Water Subsidy Fund - is used to account for amounts 
received and expended in the form of Commonwealth pass-through subsidies for local 
governments. The projects that are subsidized are federally eligible under the Safe Drinking Water 
Act, but were set aside from the Federally Capitalized Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
under Chapters 88 and 226 of the Aets of 1997. No Federal funds are received and expended in 
this fund. 

Federally Capitalized Community Hardship Loan Program - is used to account for amounts 
received and expended under the Federal Omnibus Recissions and Appropriations Act of 1996 
(Public Law 104-134,) eannarked for designated hardship communities within the 
Commonwealth. 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 
Five Year Schedule of 15 Largest Borrowers 
For fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 throu gh Jun e 30, 2007 

JUJll' ]11 . 200 7 

OKIGINAL ,, ~ ( )I-

LOCAL GOVERNME.NT UNIT "I (J r ,\L L()A \IS 

~1 a s.~i.H.:hu Sl·lt S \ Va ler RL"!)UUfCI.: ;o. Autho rity 
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Fiscal 

Year 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 
TEN YEAR SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

For fiscal years ending .Julie 30, 1998 through June 3U, 20U7 

(Amounts 111 Thollsands) 

Income (Loss) 

Operating Operating TotalOperaling Total Grant before Capital Capital 

Revenues Expenses Income (Loss) Revenue Contributions Contributions 

$ 66,691 $ 58,595 $ 8.096 $ 13.3 7R $ 21.4 74 S 
80.469 69,517 10,952 IS.99H 26 ,950 

94 ,394 83.251 11.143 11,990 23,133 ISI .n4 

120,214 102,162 18,052 10.522 28.574 107,481 

121,128 120,101 1,027 9,584 10,611 67.~49 

127.442 158,721 (31,279) 13,202 ( 18 ,077) R2.949 

137,755 148,958 (11,203) 7,853 (3,350) 37.815 

174 ,249 173.396 853 10,983 II.H36 84.269 

167,065 151 ,5 65 15,500 8.507 24 .007 73,524 

184,646 154,527 30,119 7,853 37,972 58.873 

Changes in Net Assets 
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Changes in 

Net Assets 

S 21,474 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 
TEN YEAR COMBINED SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCE 

For fiscal years l'ndingJune 30, 199R through ./UII(, 30, 2007 

(Amounts In Thousands) 

Administrative - Opl'rating Revenue 

L.oan Total 
L.oan Orignatiol1 Intl'n'st Operating 

Hscal Yrar Servicing Fees Fees Incomc Rcvenues 

199R $ 1.270 S I ~ I S (l.'UOO S 6(),69 I 

1999 1.520 2.207 76.7-1:! XO.469 

2000 I.R55 1.2~9 91.2:'10 94.394 

2001 4.567 1.054 I I-I.593 120.~14 

2002 2.50R 410 II X.210 121 , I2X 

2003 2.837 JX2 124.22:1 127.4-12 

2004 I.X3 I 209 135.7 15 IJ7T5 

2005 .1.407 196 170.M6 17-1.2-19 

2006 3.646 2~ 163.391 1(17 .0(') 

2007 3.914 IJR6 179.345 I ~ 4.()-I5 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION ABATE1VIE~T TReST 
TEN YEAR SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30,1998 THROUGH JLNE 30, 2007 

(Amounts In Thousands) 

Debt Sen'ice Requirements 

Changes Comm ofMA Total Total 

Fiscal in Net Contract Cash received Receivable Debt 

Year Assets Assistance from borrowers and Revenue Princi~al Interest Service 

1998 $21,474 $ 32,676 $ 34,711 $ 88,861 $ 37,645 S 44,088 $ 81,733 

1999 26,950 33 ,464 153,892 214,306 35,880 45,331 81,211 

2000 174,4 17 41,012 107,284 322,713 46,275 58.395 104,670 

2001 136,055 47,614 127,438 311,107 60,456 83,948 144,404 

2002 n,460 55,848 89,871 224,179 65,935 90.950 156,885 

2003 64,872 58.511 134,645 258,028 73 ,050 104,603 177,653 

2004 34,465 58,107 119,861 212,433 87,245 109,506 196,751 

2005 96,105 62,072 128,222 286,399 99,260 128, 172 227,432 

2006 97.531 63,979 141,954 303,464 111,655 125.935 237,590 

2007 96,845 64,014 171,382 332,241 122,045 124.512 246,557 

Pledged Revenue Coverage 1998 - 2007 
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Coverage 

ratio 

1.09 
2,64 

3.08 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION ABATEMENT TRUST 
TEN YEAR COMBINED SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 

DEP 
Programmatic 
Support Costs 
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EXPENSES - Operating Expenses 
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Tntal 
Operating 
Expenses 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLLUTION ABATE IVIENT TRUST 

Eight Year Schedule of Contract Assistance Provided by The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 

Massachusetts Population, and Per Capita Contract Assistance 

For fiscal years ending 6/30/2000 to 6/3012007 

Contract 

assistance Population 

Fiscal year provided (in estimates 
(I) 

ending 6/30 thousands) (in thousands) Per capita Contract assistance 

2000 33 ,012 6,363 5.19 

2001 39,6[4 6,408 6.18 

2002 47,848 6,432 7.44 

2003 50,511 6,438 7.85 

2004 58, [07 6,434 903 

2005 64,295 6,429 10.00 

2006 63,979 6,434 9.94 

2007 63,700 6,450 9.88 

(I) Source: US Census Bureau, http ://www.census .gov/popest/geographic 

Population dala is stated as of 711 of the current year. Release Date: December 27 , 2007 

Per Capita Contract Assistance 2000 - 2007 
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MASSACHUSETTS WATER POLUTION ABA TEl\1ENT TRUST 
FOUR YEAR SCHEDULE OF FULL TIME EQUIVALE NT EMPLOYEE 

Year 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

BY PROGRAM AND AGENCY 
For fiscal year·s ending 6/30/2004 - 6/30/2007 

MWPAT
Administratiye 
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Water Program 

12.44 

12.44 

17.23 

17.48 

DEP - Drinking 
Water Program 
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MWPAT - Mass Water Polution Abatement Trust 
DEP - Department of Environmental Protection 
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